

Anette Fagertun (29.11.70), CV

- Private address: Haugsneset 15, 5200 Os, Norway. Cell Ph: +47 95829991
- Office address: Western Norway University of Applied Sciences, Centre for Care Research and Faculty of Health and Social Science, Møllendalsveien 6-8, Post box 7030, 5020 Bergen, Norway. Ph: + 47 55585849. Email: anette.fagertun@hvl.no
- Academic grade: PhD, Social Anthropology & Social Science, University of Bergen, Norway, 2009.
- Position: Associate Professor, Centre for Care Research (75%), and Associate Professor Faculty of Health and Social Science, Department of Welfare and Participation (25%), Western Norway University of Applied Sciences (HVL).

Academic profile

I received my doctoral degree in Social Anthropology from the University of Bergen in 2009. One of the key interests in my academic work within political anthropological economy is the combined concern with labour, capitalism, policy and governance and the ways the intersection of gender, class, caste and ethnicity shapes labour regimes and situates various actors in different positions within the contemporary fourth wave industrial revolution. Another of my more recent research interests is the ways the welfare systems of European states are rapidly changing in the face of austerity and the onset of a greying society, and, within this process, the ways health and social care is (de)politicized and how this changes the relations between state and citizens as well as more profoundly reshape 'statehood' and the 'political' in the current neoliberal era.

Formal education

- 2000-2008 PhD, University of Bergen (UiB), Department of Social Anthropology: "*The Gender of Work and the Work of Gender: On social transformations in two fisher villages on Jimbaran Bay, Bali, Indonesia*". Thesis submitted August 2008. Public defence; January 2009.
- 1998 Cand. Polit. (Master), UiB, Department of Social Anthropology: "*Competing Female Images: the construction of Identity in Yogyakarta, Indonesia*" (Master thesis), Completion of master level grade, Faculty of Social Science.
- 1995 UiB, Dept. of Social Anthropology, master course and project proposal.
- 1994 Cand. Mag. (Bachelor), UiB, Faculty of Social Science.
- 1994 UiB, Dept. of Science of Religion, Religion first level course (bachelor level)
- 1993 UiB, Dept. of Social Anthropology, Anthropology second level
- 1992-1993 UiB, Dept. of Social Anthropology, Social Anthropology first level course
- 1991 UiB, Dept. of Psychology, Psychology first level course
- 1990 UiB, Faculty of History and Philosophy, courses in Philosophy (Ex.Phil) and Theory of Science (Humaniora, Methodology).
- 1989 High school graduation (Stord Gymnas).

Fieldwork experience

- 2018 Fieldwork, research project, a Nursing Home (NH) in the Netherlands (one week)
Fieldwork, research project, a Nursing Home in Bergen Municipality (one week)
Fieldwork, research project, Sortland and Eidskog municipality, NH, (one week)
- 2017 Fieldwork, research project, Sortland and Eidskog municipality, NH, (one week)
- 2016 Fieldwork, research project, Sortland and Eidskog municipality, NH, (one week)

2010 Fieldwork, Postdoc project, Bali, Jimbaran area, Indonesia (three months)
2003-2004 Fieldwork, PhD project, Bali, Jimbaran area, Indonesia (six months)
1999 Pre-fieldwork/work, Bali, Indonesia (three months)
1996-1997 Fieldwork, master project, Yogyakarta, Java, Indonesia

Language

Norwegian Full professional proficiency
English Full professional proficiency
Indonesian Manage the language well orally, and some in writing

Research stays

2012, 2 months: Affiliated Research Fellow, IIAS (International Institute of Asian Studies), Leiden University, the Netherlands.
2003, 3 weeks: Visiting scholar, KITLV, Leiden University, the Netherlands.

Work experience

2015, March – current position: Associate Professor, Centre for Care Research and Faculty of Health and Social Science, Western Norway University of Applied Sciences (HVL).
2010-2014 Postdoc, Dept. of Social Anthropology, UofB.
2009 Associate Professor, Faculty of Health Education, University College of Stord/Haugesund (HSH).
2009 Senior Lecturer, Dept. of Social Anthropology, UofB.
2000-2008 UofB, PhD candidate, Dept. of Social Anthropology, UofB.

Other work experiences

- Referee for the following Journals: The Norwegian Journal of Anthropology (NAT), The Norwegian Journal of Geography, Ethnos, Social Analysis, Nursing Inquiry, Development and Change, Nursing Inquiry, Tidsskrift for Omsorgsforskning.
- Leader of Bachelor program for Development studies, UiB, 2012.
- Co-writing proposal for a new PhD-program at HVL (2016-2018), course leader of mandatory course in theory of science.

Teaching, examination and supervision

I have taught, and had course responsibility, at Bachelor and Master level, at the Department of Social Anthropology, UiB, at HSH and at Western Norway University of Applied Sciences. I have tutored students at both levels in a range of different themes, among these theory of science, methodology, globalization, social theory, development and gender.

I have extensive experience with examination from both the University of Bergen and The Western Norway University of Applied Sciences, as well as an external examiner (for example UiO, UiT), at bachelor and master level, as well as some experience with examination at PhD level such as mandatory papers of Theory of Science.

I have supervised students at all levels and I currently supervise one PhD student in the MultiCare project (see below) where I function both as coordinator and researcher.

Research projects

- 1); ***“The Gender of Work and the Work of Gender: On social transformations in two fisher villages on Jimbaran Bay, Bali, Indonesia”*** (2000-2008). PhD-project headed by myself and associated with a large NRC project titled “Migrants and Entrepreneurs in Insular South East Asia” (MEISA) led by Assoc. Professor Eldar Bråten, Dept. of Social Anthropology, UiB.
- 2) ***“Localizing Global dynamics through Labor: Class as a new regime of value in Bali”*** (2010-2014). Individual Postdoc project funded by NRC, FRISAM, and headed by myself, located at the Dept. of Social Anthropology, UiB.
- 3) ***“Localizing Globalization: Gendered Transformations of Work in Developing Economies”*** (2010-2013). Multidisciplinary and multi-institutional research project, UiB and CMI: headed by Professor Leif Manger at the Dept. of Social Anthropology, UiB, and funded by NRC FRISAM. I developed the proposal, took part in and organized conferences and was guest editor of Journal of Development Studies for four of the participant researchers myself included. I was an associated researcher to the project since I got an individual postdoc project at the same time.
- 4) ***“De-naturalizing difference. Challenging the production of global social inequality”*** (2013-2016). Research Institution-based Strategic Project (ISP) initiated by the Departments of Social Anthropology in Oslo and Bergen, and CMI, funded by RCN. I co-wrote the proposal, introduced the project at opening conference, arranged and presented paper at AAA workshop in Washington and participated in conferences throughout the project period.
- 5) ***“Multicultural staff in Nursing Homes: Contemporary challenges, opportunities and the potential for the future” (MultiCare)***, (2016 – 2020), NRC HELSEVEL. Research-project. I co-wrote the proposal, developed RQs and theoretical framework. I coordinate the project, conduct research in a work package and supervise a PhD student. Headed by the Centre for Care Research, Western Norway University of Applied Sciences.
- 6) ***“Prioritizing Care: Emerging dilemmas in the Norwegian care service landscape (PriCare)”***, (2017 – 2021). NRC HELSEVEL. Research-project. I co-wrote the proposal, developed RQs and theoretical framework and participate as researcher responsible for three of eight RQs. Headed by the Centre for Care Research, Eastern Norway, NTNU.
- 7) ***“A standard of safety in Norwegian Nursing Homes” (“Trygghetsstandard i norske sykehjem”)*** (2016 – 2018) Evaluation and implementation research project of a Pilot conducted by the Norwegian Health Directory. Funded by the Norwegian Health Directory and headed by the Centre for Care Research. I conduct research, analysis, wrote reports and presented results.
- 8) ***“The problematics of stopwatch work” (No: “Normtider til besvær”)*** (spring 2017). Evaluation research project funded by the municipality of Bergen, Norway. Project team: O. Førland (PI), R. Hansen & A. Fagertun, Centre for Care Research, HVL. I collected data, did analyses and co-wrote the report to Bergen municipality.

Publications

Articles in peer reviewed journals

- 2018 In press: Isaksen, Jørn, Gudmund Ågotnes & Anette Fagertun. “Tensions between Standardization, Variation and Prioritization in Norwegian Nursing Homes”. *Tidsskrift for Omsorgsforskning (Journal of Care Research)*, Vol. 4, No. 2, pp. 144-153.
- 2017 A) Fagertun, Anette, “The anti-politics of healthcare policy and its blurring effects on care work”. *International Practice Development Journal*, 7:2, online: <https://doi.org/10.19043/ipdj.7SP.002>
- B) Fagertun, Anette, “Waves of dispossession: the conversion of land and labour in Bali’s recent history”. *Social Analysis. The international journal of social and cultural practice*, Vol. 61, Issue 3, pp. 108 – 125. Berghahn. Doi: 10.3167/sa.2017.610307
- 2016 A) Fagertun, Anette, (Guest ed.) special section, “Labour in ‘Paradise’: gender, class and social mobility in the Informal Tourism Economy of urban Bali, Indonesia”. *The Journal of Development Studies*, Taylor & Francis group, doi.org/10.1080/00220388.2016.1184248
- B) Fagertun, Anette, (Guest ed.) special section, “Localising Globalisation: Gendered Transformations of Work in Emergent Economies”. *The Journal of Development Studies*, Taylor & Francis group, doi.org/10.1080/00220388.2016.1184252
- 2007 A) Fagertun, Anette, ”Kjønn som strukturerende prinsipp for rituelt arbeid på Bali”. *Norsk Antropologisk Tidsskrift (Journal of the Norwegian Anthropological Association)*, Vol 18 nr 2, s. 104-123. Universitetsforlaget.
- 2007 B) Fagertun, Eriksen og Ødegaard (guest editors),”Introduksjon. Om kjønn og antropologi”. *Norsk Antropologisk Tidsskrift (Journal of the Norwegian Anthropological Association)*, Vol. 18 nr 2, s. 75-89. Universitetsforlaget.
- 2006 Fagertun, Fosshagen, Bertelsen og Teig, ”Antropologien og staten. En innledning”. *Norsk Antropologisk Tidsskrift (Journal of the Norwegian Anthropological Association)*, Vol 17 nr 3-4, s. 167-200. Universitetsforlaget.

Chapters/Articles in edited volumes

- 2018 Forthcoming; Fagertun, Anette & Laila Tingvold. “Care work, gender and ethnicity: multicultural work-communities and institutional changes” (No: Omsorgsarbeid, kjønn og etnisitet: flerkulturelle arbeidsfellesskap i norske sykehjem i møte med institusjonelle endringer), Chapter 4 in *Health, Migration & Profession (Helse, Migrasjon & Profesjon)*, Jonas Debesay & Christine Tchudi-Madsen (Eds.). Gyldendal.
- Forthcoming; Fagertun, Anette. “Absorbing care; the shifting boundaries of policy and labour in the Norwegian health care sector”, Chapter 8 in *Rights, Reproduction and Care: Gender, intimacy and mobility in the context of hardening borders*, Haldis Haukanes & Frances Pine (Eds.).

- 2013 Fagertun, Anette
 “Gender and Moralities of Work on Jimbaran Bay, South Bali”. Chapter 4 in the book *Migrants and Entrepreneurs in Peninsular Southeast Asia*, Eldar Bråten (ed.), pp. 83-102, Leiden, Boston: BRILL.

Reports

- 2018 Jørn Isaksen, Ågotnes, Gudmund & Anette Fagertun . “A standard of Safety in Norwegian Nursing Homes”, Norwegian Health Directory.

- 2017 Førland, O., Fagertun, A., Hansen, R. & Kverndokk, S. (2017): Normtider til besvær. Evaluering av endringene i normtider for hjemmetjenestene i Bergen kommune. Senter for omsorgsforskning. Rapportserie nr. 4/2017. <http://hdl.handle.net/11250/2444232>

Book reviews/essays

- 2018 In press, Fagertun, Anette. "Grassroots mobilization, solidarity and hierarchical Logics. A historical anthropological study of the Norwegian welfare state experiment". *Tidsskrift for Omsorgsforskning (Journal of Care Research)*, Vol. 4, No. 2, pp. 183-187.
- 2014 The effect of 'Affect': Henrietta Moore's turn, *Social Analysis, The international Journal of Cultural and Social Practice*, Vol. 58, Issue 2, pp. 120-127. Berghahn.
- 2007 *Review of "Kvinneliv i eksil, seks portrett"*, Berit Berg, Torunn Fladstad og Kirsten Lauritzen (eds.), *Norsk Antropologisk Tidsskrift (Journal of the Norwegian Anthropological Association)*, Vol 18 nr 3-4, s. 312-313. Universitetsforlaget.

Dissertations

- 2009 Fagertun, Anette
"The Gender of Work and the Work of Gender: On social transformations in two fisher villages on Jimbaran Bay, Bali, Indonesia". PhD dissertation, University of Bergen, Norway, ISBN 978-82-308-0719-4 (University Library).
- 1998 *"Konkurrerende kvinnebilette: Konstruksjon av kvinnelege identiteter i møte med ulike kjønnsdiskursar i byen Yogyakarta, Indonesia"*. Master thesis, Dept. of Social Anthropology, UiB.

Publications/citing in popular media

- 2017 Normtider til besvær/ The problematics of stopwatch work, cited and referred to in regional newspapers, Bergens Tidende & Bergens Arbeiderblad, in Sykepleien (online journal of Nursing) & NRK (Norwegian Broadcasting Corporation), spring 2017.
- 2016 Interviewed by NRK P3 radio on Indonesia, Bali, students.
- 2014 "Examination system in Norway: Experiences from the faculty of Social Science, University of Bergen". *Southwestern Education Hub Quarterly* 10th issue, Vol. 2, Southwestern State College Basundhara, Kathmandu, Nepal.
- 2013 "Gendered labor in 'Paradise': tourism as an engine of change in Bali". *IIAS The Newsletter*, No. 66, winter 2013.

Other academic work / Paper presentations at conferences

- 2017 *Multicultural workforce in the Norwegian healthcare sector: flexible labour, gender and social inequality. Discussing the MultiCare project*. Bergen Anthropology Day, September 15th, University of Bergen.
 Fagertun, Anette & McGilton, Katherine. *Staffing and practice models in long term Care - towards common data elements in comparative research*. Pre-conference workshop: Common data elements for International research in long-term care homes: Advancing Person-centered Care, IAGG International Conference, San Francisco, July 2017.
Waves of dispossession: land and labor conversion in Bali's recent history.
 Presentation

- of article at kick-off workshop for the 'Frontlines' project headed by professor Don Kalb, UiB. 24-26 June, Bergen.
- Midway Report* Trygghetsstandard, presentation, Conference by the Norwegian Health Directory, 7-8 June, Oslo.
- Discussant* at international conference "Care Philosophy and tacit knowledge", Bergen 9-10 May.
- 2016 *The anti-politics of healthcare policy and its blurring effects on care work*. Conference organized by the group 'Omsorgens fenomener og grunnlag', VID, Bergen, Nov 8-9.
- Denaturalizing dispossession: dimensions of shifting labor regimes in emergent economies*. ISP project closing conference, September 2016.
- Multicultural care staff in Norwegian Municipalities*. Presentation at SEFAS-seminar, UiB, September.
- The anti-politics of Care*. Poster presentation at EFPC annual international conference, Riga, Sept. 2016
- The anti-politics of Care in Norway: a theoretical discussion*. Anthropological Association of Ireland annual conference, Maynooth University, March 2016.
- 2015 *The workforce of care in Norway: gender, value and naturalization*. European Forum for Primary Care (EFPC), conference, Amsterdam.
- 2014 *Denaturalizing Dispossession: The conversion of Labor and Land in Bali, Indonesia*. Invited paper presentation prepared for the AAA-conference in December, Washington D.C, on a panel titled "Naturalizing difference in the time of economic liberalization and new technologies of control".
- *New and old egalitarianisms in post-industrial society in the context of the reconfiguration of work and labor*. Invited paper presentation at the international conference "Thinking openly about egalitarianism" by Bruce Kapferer and Dept. of Social Anthropology, UoB.
- 2013 *Denaturalizing Difference: Challenging the production of global social inequality. A discussion of concepts*. Invited paper presentation co-written and co-presented with Christine Jacobsen (SKOK) for the opening conference of the ISP-project (developing anthropological theory) funded by the Norwegian Research Council and based at the Department, UoB.
- *The conversion of land and labor as accumulation by dispossession in the 'global tourist resort' of Bali, Indonesia*. Paper presentation at the seminar group 'Material Imaginaries and Imaginary Materialities' led by Andrew Lattas, UofB.
 - *Gendered Conversions: Land and Labour in the global tourist resort of Bali*. International conference, 'Localizing Globalization: Gendered transformations of Work in Developing Economies', in Bergen 20 Oct-1 November, organized by the Department of Social Anthropology, Dept. of Geography and CMI.
- 2012 *Discussant* at the International Conference "Gender and Christianity: A comparative analysis of Gender in Pentecostal Christianity with focus on Africa and Melanesia", 22-23 April. Organized by the Dept. of Social Anthropology UofB.
- 2012 *Gender and social mobility: labour in the mass-tourism economy of Bali* (paper) International Workshop "Gendered Transformations of Work" by UofB and CMI 19-20 April.
- 2010 *Localizing Global dynamics through Labour: Class as a new regime of value in Bali, Indonesia*. Department seminar at the Dept. of Social Anthropology, UofB.
- 2009 *Gender and Class patterns of Labour relations in the 'global tourist resort' of Bali* (paper). International conference: 'Global Transformations of Gender and Work:

- Methodological challenges in comparative and multidisciplinary research', UofB and CMI.
- 2008 *Gender and Moralities of Work in Bali, Indonesia* (paper). International conference: 'Gendered Economies: Markets, Moralities and Informality in a Globalized World', Centre for Women's and Gender Studies (SKOK) and Gender and Development, UiB.
- 2006 *Ulike forskingsobjekt i antropologiske studier av kjønn: Om arbeid og arbeidsdeling på Bali* (paper). National conference 'Gender as ethnographical challenge and analytical category', arranged by Ødegaard, Eriksen and Fagertun, Dept. of Social Anthropology, UiB and Centre for Women and Gender Studies (SKOK), UofB.
- 2006 *Difference & Equality: Gender, Work and Global Capitalism*. Speech given at the 8th of March (International Women's Day) for a seminar arranged by the Labour Party's women's group.
- 2005 *Conceptualizing 'Sociality' in Anthropology: Epistemological implications of different methodological positions*. Scientific paper and obligatory lecture in Theory of Science at the Centre of Theory of Science and the Faculty of Social Science, UiB.
- 2005 *Religious activity in Bali as gendering practice and work* (paper). PhD-course "Feminism, Emancipation, Freedom", SKOK and Dept. of Linguistics and Science of Literature, UofB.